МІНІСТЕРСТВО ОСВІТИ І НАУКИ УКРАЇНИ МИКОЛАЇВСЬКИЙ НАЦІОНАЛЬНИЙ АГРАРНИЙ УНІВЕРСИТЕТ

Факультет культури й виховання Кафедра іноземних мов

АНГЛІЙСЬКА МОВА

Методичні рекомендації та навчальний матеріал для аудиторної та самостійної роботи здобувачів вищої освіти ступеня «бакалавр» спеціальності 073 «Менеджмент» денної форми навчання

Миколаїв

2017

УДК 811.111

ББК 81.2(4Англ)

A-64

Друкується за рішенням методичної комісії факультету культури й виховання від 24.01.2017 р., протокол № 5.

Укладач:

К. В. Тішечкіна — канд. філол. наук, доцент кафедри іноземних мов, Миколаївський національний аграрний університет

Рецензенти:

- Т. О. Мороз канд. пед. наук, доцент, декан факультету іноземної філології, Миколаївський національний університет ім. В. О. Сухомлинського;
- С. Г. Заскалєта доктор пед. наук, доцент кафедри іноземних мов, Миколаївський національний аграрний університет.

© Миколаївський національний аграрний університет, 2017

Зміст

Передмова.	4
Leisure in Britain.	5
Animals	8
Health in Britain.	10
Law and order in Britain	12
Food	15
Introduction to Britain	17
Festivals in Britain	19
London.	21
Media in Britain.	23
British Schools	25
Sports in Britain	27
Work in Britain.	29
Holidays	31
Environment	33

Передмова

Методичні рекомендації для аудиторної та самостійної роботи здобувачів вищої освіти ступеня «бакалавр» спеціальності 073 «Менеджмент» денної форми навчання забезпечують навчальний матеріал дисципліни «Іноземна мова (спеціальна економічна лексика)».

Мета даних методичних рекомендацій — забезпечення розвитку мовних та мовленнєвих навичок студентів з тем, передбачених навчальною програмою з іноземних мов рекомендованою Міністерством освіти і науки України та підготовка студентів до складання заліку з англійської мови.

Методичні рекомендації розраховані на 45 год. (1.5 кр.) самостійної роботи.

За кожну тему студент може отримати від 10-15 балів, що передбачено навчальною програмою з іноземних мов.

Методичні рекомендації є збіркою завдань до відеофільмів для отримання додаткової інформації, яка доповнює навчальний посібник «Англійська мова міжнародного бізнесу та менеджменту» фактичним матеріалом.

Методичні рекомендації розроблені згідно до вимог типової базової програми. Для підготовки методичних рекомендацій використовувались матеріали з новітніх підручників, автентичних джерел та періодичних видань.

Може використовуватися аспірантами та магістрами спеціальності «Менеджмент».

Leisure in Britain

1. Match English and Ukrainian equivalents:

leisure activity художні галереї

recreational places скачки

short break holidays слухати радіо watching sport чудова колекція horse racing лондонський Тауер art galleries вхід вільний

wonderful collection дивитися спорт admission is free місця відпочинку

the Tower of London дозвілл

listening to the radio короткі канікули

- 1. What are the top leisure activity in Britain?
- a) going to the pub;
- b) going to the market;
- c) going to the park.
- 2. Do the people go to pub for a drink only?
- a) only for a drink;
- b) also for a meal, listen the live music, karaoke competition and quiz nights;
- c) to play darts.
- 3. What is the second most popular activity?
- a) going to the restaurant;
- b) going to aquarium;
- c) going to theatres.
- 4. And the 3rd one?
- a) going to Tower;
- b) going to fast food places;
- c) going to museum.
- 5. What group of people going out for fast food?
- a) young people;
- b) old people.
- 6. Which activity is more popular?
- a) going to the cinema;
- b) going to the library.

- 7. What are the favorite sports in Britain?
- a) football, horse racing and cricket;
- b) basketball, golf, hockey;
- c) volleyball, ice skating, swimming.
- 8. What is the name of the oldest museum in Britain?
- a) Ashmolean;
- b) Tower;
- c) Buckingham Palace.
- 9. What is the location of the oldest museum?
- a) Liverpool;
- b) Cambridge;
- c) Oxford.
- 10. What are the other recreational places people like to visit?
- a) Alton towers;
- b) Disneyland;
- c) Aventura Mall.
- 11. How many million people visit Alton towers every year?
- a) 1 million;
- b) 2 million;
- c) 3 million.
- 12. What are the other places people like to visit?
- a) museum of Madame Tussaud, the Legoland, the London Eye;
- b) National Market;
- c) London Underground.
- 13. When was the London Eye opened?
- a) March 2000;
- b) September 2005;
- c) December 2012.
- 14. What do the British do at home at their free time?
- a) drinking coffee;
- b) watching the TV;
- c) playing computer games.
- 3. Put the words in the correct order:
- 1. /is /their/ British/ / The most/ /home/ popular activity/ people/ going to the pub / own/ outside/ for

- 2. holidays/popular/ both abroad and in Britain / Short break/ very / are
- 3. quiz nights/ nowadays / many/ live music / Almost all pubs / karaoke competition/ and / have / serve / meals/ pubs / and
- 4. The London Eye / most/ is / attractions/ March/ London's most popular / 2000 / in/ one of / and
- 5. University of Oxford / The Ashmolean / oldest/ of the/ has been / since 1683/ in / museum/ and/ / Britain/ part/ is/ the/ it
 - 6. Britain/ the top ten / So/ leisure activities / in/ are / what
- 7. since 1982/ The number of fast food / Britain/ times/ increased / restaurants / ten/ about/ has/ in
- 8. more than doubled too / since 1980/ Although / has / and/ the number of cinemas / going to the cinema / the number of people / has almost doubled
 - 9. big a free time / And of course / activity/ sport / watching / is
 - 4. True or Falls:
 - 1. The number of fast food restaurant has increased about 10 times since 1982.
 - 2. The fourth most popular activity is going to the library
 - 3. The number of cinemas have decreased
 - 4. Short break holidays are very popular in Britain.
 - 5. A lot of old people go to disco's and night clubs.
 - 6. Art galleries and museums are not popular
- 7. In order to enter the Ashmolean museum you have to pay the admission fee.
 - 5. Write the mail to friend about your favourite leisure activities.

Animals

1. Match English and Ukrainian equivalents:

animal protection society
royal society for the protection of birds
cats, dogs and fish
the most common farm animals
we use them for milk and for beef
there are lots of birds on farm
different kinds of animals
turkeys, ducks and chickens
red deer is the largest wild animal
Scottish highlands

кішки, собаки і риби шотландське високогір'я індики, качки і курі товариство захисту тварин королівське товариство захисту птахів найбільш поширені сільськогосподарські тварини благородний олень є найбільшою дикою твариною різні види тварин є багато птахів на фермі ми використовуємо їх для молока і яловичини

- 1. How many cows are there in Britain?
- a) 11 million;
- b) 12 million;
- c) 10 thousand.
- 2. What do we use cows for?
- a) milk;
- b) beef;
- c) all of the above.
- 3. How many sheep are there in Britain?
- a) 50 million;
- b) 44,5 million;
- c) 20 million.
- 4. There are lots of birds on farm.
- a) chickens;
- b) turkeys;
- c) ducks;
- d) all of the above;
- e) rabbits.

- 5. One of the smallest wild animals is:
- a) rat;
- b) field mouse;
- c) hamster.
- 6. ... the only British animal with spines:
- a) hedgehog;
- b) porcupine;
- c) crocodile.
- 7. 200 years ago this animal lived all over Britain
- a) black squirrel;
- b) red squirrel;
- c) grey squirrel.
- 8. The golden eagle need protection from...
- a) dogs;
- b) bears;
- c) humans.
- 3. Put the words in the correct order:
- 1. very important/ at/ and/ Animals/ on the farm / home/ to the British:/ are / in a wild
 - 2. the most/Britain/ are / pets/ in/ popular/ What
 - 3. together/ even more / sheep / pigs and cows / There are / than
 - 4. farm birds/ Altogether / 172 million/ there are / an amazing
 - 5. all over Britain/ one of the easiest / see/ live/ It's also / because/ to/ they
- 6. easily recognize/ nose/ You can / because/ of it's / a badger / black and white
- 7. countryside / how to live / As more and more / some foxes/ learning/ is/ in towns/ disappearing / are
- 8. not all animals / However / their habits / from others/ need protection / so good at changing / are/ and / some animals

- 4. True or falls:
- 1. The golden eagle is one of the most common British animals.
- 2. There are total of 116 protected species of animal in Britain.
- 3. The police also use horses to control crowds
- 4. Because they like animals the British give money to 5societies in particular.
- 5. RSPB The Royal Society for the protection of cows
- 6. Over 20% of British homes have a pet.
- 7. Cats, dogs and fish are the most popular pets.
- 8. When your pet gets ill you'll have to come to the vets.
- 9. The majority of the animals that they treat are cows, sheep and deer.
- 10. There are 7 million pigs in Britain.
- 5. What kind of farm and wild animals do you have in your country? Do they need protection? Please, explain.

Health in Britain

1. Match English and Ukrainian equivalents:

keep fit
reflexology
general practitioner
prescription
expecting a baby
The National Health Service
free medical care
eye tests and glasses
high level of cancer
alternative medicine

альтернативна медицина очні тести і окуляри Національна служба охорони здоров'я високий рівень захворювань на рак безкоштовне медичне обслуговування підтримувати себе у формі чекати на дитину лікар загальної практики рефлексологія рецепт

- 2. Choose the right variant:
- 1. Healthcare is important, so is...
- a) diet;
- b) fitness;
- c) all of the above.
- 2. If you ill in Britain, you go to see...
- a) your GP;
- b) your driver;
- c) your father.
- 3. GP is...
- a) general practitioner;
- b) family doctor;
- c) all of the above.
- 4. Which of the groups of the people get their medicine free?
- a) lawyers;
- b) students;
- c) teachers.
- 5. This is the John Redcliff Hospital in...
- a) Cambridge;
- b) Oxford;
- c) Liverpool.
- 3. Put the words in the correct order:
- 1. free / hospital treatments / are/ operations/ and / All NHS
- 2. to very old / the NHS provide / for everyone in Britain: / In fact/ the / from the very young / very/ free medical care
- 3. like reflexology, homeopathy and acupuncture / Many people / treatment or alternative medicine / and use other kinds / of / see private doctors
 - 4. at all / hurt/ doesn't / It really
 - 5. British men / age of 74 / live / to 79/ British women / On average / to the

- 4. True or Falls:
- 1. In 1952 only 271 people reach the age of a 100.
- 2. I hope to see you on my 65th birthday!
- 3. In Britain today people are putting time money and energy into keeping well and keeping fit.
 - 4. There are over 36000 GP's in Britain.
 - 5. If you need medicine your GP will give you some.
 - 6. You have to pay to see your doctor
 - 7. Britain has one of the highest levels of heart decease in the Western World
- 8. There are more NHS doctors in Britain than alternative medical practitioners.
- 5. Please tell us about the National healthcare in your country. Does it work well? Is there any room for improvement?

Law and order in Britain

1. Match English and Ukrainian equivalents:

two million crimes
to commit crimes
crown court
criminal cases
armed robbery
12 ordinary people
defendant is guilty
what the sentence will be
prison population
death penalty for murder

яким буде вирок королівський суд тюремне населення два мільйони злочинів смертна кара за вбивство обвинувачений винен 12 звичайних людей кримінальні справи озброєний розбій чинити злочини

- 2. Choose the right variant:
- 1. One important part of the work of the British police is to:
- a) to help the local community;
- b) to help the British Prime Minister;
- c) to visit interesting places.
- 2. Police officers are often seen on the:
- a) bicycles;
- b) streets;
- c) cinemas.
- 3. There are about ... police officers in Britain.
- a) one hundred and fifty thousand;
- b) one million;
- c) two hundred thousand.
- 4. Another important part of their work is to ...
- a) visit museums;
- b) travel abroad;
- c) fight against crime.
- 5. After people are arrested they come to somewhere like this, a ...
- a) pizzeria;
- b) library;
- c) court.
- 6. That's the ... highest proportion of the population in any country in Western Europe
 - a) first;
 - b) second;
 - c) third.
 - 7. If necessary a Judge can send someone to prison for...
 - a) 5 years;
 - b) 10 years;
 - c) the rest of their life.
 - 3. Put the words in the correct order:
 - 1. happened, please / this/ Can / me/ when/ you tell
 - 2. carry guns/ these officers / in many/ Unlike police / other countries / don't
 - 3. recorded/ In 1999/ / million/ about five/ were/ crimes

- 4. were / broken into or / committed/ Over a million cars / were/ stolen/ and nearly a million / burglaries
- 5. the crown court / the magistrates court and / / In England and Wales / there are / main types of court: / two
 - 6. all criminal cases / make up/ This/ five / ninety five per cent / of
 - 7. Twelve ordinary people / guilty or not guilty / if the defendant / decide / is
- 8. was / seventy thousand/in Britain / the prison population / In the year 2000/ over
 - 4. True or Falls:
 - 1. In Britain the death penalty for murder was abolished in 1969.
- 2. This prison was closed two years ago. Now it's going to become a restaurant.
 - 3. In Britain five times more men than women commit crimes.
 - 4. More important crimes are dealt with a magistrates court.
 - 5. These twelve ordinary people are called Judges.
 - 6. The Judge decided what's the sentence will be.
 - 7. "I've covered the city for a good ten years as a field officer".
 - 8. Five million of these crimes were theft.
- 5. Please, describe, how the police fights with a crime in your country. Do they have any success? Is there anything you'd have changed?

Food

1. Match English and Ukrainian equivalents:

bacon and eggs напівфабрикати

fish and chips сандвіч

roast beef ясчня з беконом

milkmen йоркширський пудинг

toast with jam смажений хліб

traditional English breakfast ростбіф (смажена яловичина)

fried bread риба і смажена картопля

sandwich смажена яловичина

convenience food традиційний англійський сніданок

Yorkshire pudding тости з джемом

молочники

- 1. Milkmen bring milk to...
- a) restaurants;
- b) offices;
- c) people's houses.
- 2. The traditional English breakfast includes...
- a) bacon, egg, sausage, tomato and fried bread;
- b) ice cream, pizza;
- c) pasta with tomato souce.
- 3. Lunch is at about...
- a) twelve or one o'clock;
- b) one or two o'clock;
- c) two or three o'clock.
- 4. At lunch people usually have...
- a) seafood;
- b) soup and vegetables;
- c) sandwich or snack.
- 5. Most people buy their food from...
- a) cafes;
- b) pubs;
- c) supermarkets.

- 3. Put the words in the correct order:
- 1. own food/ prepare/ The Robinsons / their / usually
- 2. is/ six or seven / Dinner/ o'clock/ the evening meal / usually / at about
- 3. London/ over forty two/ has restaurants / countries / different/ from
- 4. Thai and Italian / very / and / restaurants/ popular/ so are / Chinese and Indian / are
 - 5. chips/traditional food / go out / like / The British also / fish / eat / to/ and
 - 6. like / really/ not/ like/ British teenagers / But what / do/ or
 - 7. on top/ pasta with loads / cheese/ like/ of/ I especially
 - 4. True or Falls:
- 1. This is the usual breakfast- milk and cereal, toast with jam or marmalade, fruit juice, tea or coffee.
 - 2. At lunchtime people usually only have a break of two hours.
 - 3. In some shops they sell an amazing number of different sandwiches
 - 4. You have to prepare convenience food.
 - 5. Most people have their main meal in the morning.
 - 6. At dinner people have yoghurt, soup and fruits.
 - 7. British people eat only British food
 - 8. Vegetarians do not eat any meat or fish
 - 9. Fish and chips is very expensive in Britain.
 - 10. British people do not eat the traditional English breakfast very often now.
- 5. Do you like to eat? How about cooking? What is your favourite meal and dessert? Post online your best recipe.

Introduction to Britain

1. Match English and Ukrainian equivalents:

northwest of England

foreign tourists

Giant's Causeway

Northern Ireland Stonehenge

Snowdon National Park

Waterloo Station

The United Kingdom of Great Britain

and Northern Ireland

Wales

Стоунхендж

Національний парк Сноудон

Станція Ватерлоо

північний захід Англії

Північна Ірландія

Уельс

Сполучене Королівство Великої

Британії та Північної Ірландії

іноземні туристи Мостова гігантів

- 2. Choose the right variant:
- 1. Seven million people live in...
- a) Edinburgh;
- b) Belfast;
- c) London.
- 2. In London the Queen lives in...
- a) Houses of Parliament;
- b) Buckingham Palace;
- c) Tower.
- 3. Stratford- upon- Avon, the birthplace of...
- a) Queen;
- b) Prime Minister;
- c) William Shakespeare.
- 4. Over seventy five per cent of the land in Britain is
- a) national parks;
- b) cities;
- c) farmland.
- 5. What is the Stonehenge?
- a) temple;
- b) clock;
- c) calendar;
- d) nobody really knows.

- 3. Put the words in the correct order:
- 1. popular/ is/ the Snowdon National Park / In Wales / very
- 2. Scotland/ beautiful/ are/ These ones / west coast/ on / the / of
- 3. trains/ From here, / through the Channel Tunnel / go/ Brussels in Belgium / Paris, in France / to / and/ to
 - 4. Britain / Window/ Leonie Dodd/ Hello, I'm / welcome to / on / and
- 5. Houses of Parliament / The Prime Minister/ here / at 10 Downing Street / lives/ near/ the
 - 6. Northern Ireland / means / England, Scotland, Wales and / That
 - 7. London / in/ Seven million / city/ the / people/ capital / live
 - 4. True or Falls:
 - 1. The Head of State is the Prime Minister.
 - 2. The Queen's head is on banknotes, stamps and coins.
 - 3. Edinburgh, the capital of Wales with it's old castle.
 - 4. Liverpool, once a very important port and the home of Elton John.
 - 5. Cambridge and Oxford- both famous for their universities.
 - 6.Britain also has twenty National Parks.
 - 7. Over twenty four million foreign tourist come to Britain every year.
 - 8. Britain is a part of mainland.
 - 9. The population of Britain is over fifty eight million.
- 5. What can you say about your country? What are the main cities? Is there any National Parks? Any attractions, places to visit?

 Please, describe.

Festivals in Britain

1. Match English and Ukrainian equivalents:

St. Valentine's Day День всіх святих

Christmas Трафальгарська площа

Pancake Day Hiч Гая Фокса

Halloween Фестиваль привидів і відьом

Easter Різдво

Guy Fawkes Night Новорічний вечір

Traditional Christmas pudding Великдень

New Year's Eve Традиційний Різдвяний пудинг

Trafalgar Square Млинцевий День

Festival of ghosts and witches День Святого Валентина

- 1. People keep their Christmas presents...
- a) under the table;
- b) under the Christmas Tree;
- c) in a backyard.
- 2. On Christmas morning lots of families go to...
- a) cinema;
- b) theatre;
- c) church.
- 3. Pancake Day is in...
- a) February;
- b) January;
- c) December.
- 4. On the 14th of February people send cards to...
- a) friends;
- b) colleges;
- c) business partners;
- d) someone they are in love with.
- 5. Helloween is the festival of
- a) ghosts and witches;
- b) families and friends;
- c) lights and shadows.

- 3. Put the words in the correct order:
- 1. have parties and / dress up as / witches / children / often/ People
- 2. Christmas/ Britain/ especially/ Easter and Christmas, / in / But the really important / are/ festivals
- 3. a special Christmas Dinner: / and brussel sprouts / They/ roast turkey,/ stuffing,/ home and / roast potatoes, / come back/ have
- 4. a little present a paper / you pull it / are / crackers / These / each end and inside / there is / hat and a joke
- 5. New Year's Eve / New Year / old year or the first one / After Christmas / there is last festival / of the / of the / the
- 6. British people / like / Europe/ with the rest/ celebrate some festivals / Christmas and Easter / of / are just British / some/ but
 - 4. True or Falls:
 - 1. People throw pancakes in the air and race at the same time.
 - 2. On the fifth of November every year British people remember Robin Hood.
 - 3. At Christmas people put up lots of decorations.
 - 4. On Christmas Day people give presents to their friends and family.
 - 5. Sometimes people put a golden coin in a traditional Christmas pudding.
- 6. On the New Year's Eve at midnight everyone sing a traditional song 'We wish you a Merry Christmas'.
 - 7. There are a lot of fireworks on the Guy Fawkes Night.
- 5. Send an e-mail to your friends and tell them about your national festivals. Which are the most popular?

London

1. Match English and Ukrainian equivalents:

street fashion знаменитий магазин у Великобританії

variety of London Гайд-Парк

first performance мадам Тюссо (музей)

world record водний автобус

Hyde park різноманітність Лондону

bridge over the Thames світовий рекорд water bus вулична мода underground перший виступ famous store in Britain міст через Темзу

Madame Tussauds метро

- 1. In 1834 Charles Henry Harrod started a small business as a...
- a) grocer;
- b) barber;
- c) farmer.
- 2. London is also a great place for:
- a) sightseeing;
- b) shopping;
- c) all of the above.
- 3. Another popular place for shopping is called...
- a) 'the Garden';
- b) 'the Yard';
- c) 'the Field'.
- 4. What was the name of the very first play?
- a) the Mousetrap;
- b) the Bambi;
- c) the Oliver Twist.
- 5. There are some wonderful parks in London:
- a) Hyde Park;
- b) Regent's Park;
- c) St. James's Park;
- d) all of the above.
- 6. Now there are ... bridges over the Thames
- a) 27;

- b) 28;
- c) 29.
- 7. 'Could you tell me what you like most about London'
- a) shopping;
- b) variety;
- c) museums;
- d) all of the above.
- 3. Put the words in the correct order:
- 1. the Romans built / of the city of London / and that was the beginning / In about 43 A. D. / over the river / the first bridge
- 2. some for trains and / 29 bridges: / some for cars, / there are / some for pedestrians / Now
- 3. so much for people / palaces, churches, cathedrals, the Tower, Trafalgar Square / There is / and lots of museums and art galleries / to see in London:
- 4. to London in 1802/ of wax models / brought her exhibition / Madame Tussaud
- 5. over $3000 \ \text{staff}$ / on seven floors and/ has $300 \ \text{apartments}$ / Today the Harrods store
 - 4. True or Falls:
 - 1. London is the capital of Ireland.
 - 2. Until 1747 there was only one bridge over the Thames.
 - 3. London has a population of nearly eight million.
 - 4. Travelling around London is very difficult.
 - 5. You can go in one of London's famous black buses or red taxies.
 - 6. The London Underground is also known as the Tube.
 - 7. About 35000 people shop at Macy's every day.
 - 8. London has over a hundred and thirty cinemas and more than sixty theatres.

- 9. Dr. Johnson a famous English writer once said 'When a man is tired of London he is tired of life'.
- 5. What is the capital of your country. What do you know about your capital? Is there any beautiful places there?

Media in Britain

1. Match English and Ukrainian equivalents:

television in Britain
British newspapers and magazines
action and sci fi videos
tabloid papers
video recorder
news on the radio
terrestrial television channels
television license
favourite program
Tonight I'm going to watch 'Neighbors'
and 'Friends'

улюблена програма сьогодні ввечері я буду дивитися "Сусіди" і "Друзі" наземні телевізійні канали телебачення в Великобританії відеомагнітофон бульварні газети Британські газети і журнали новини по радіо ліцензія на телебачення бойовики та наукова фантастика

- 2. Choose the right variant:
- 1. The British love their...
- a) newspapers;
- b) cars;
- c) cinemas.
- 2. The two most popular newspapers are tabloids:
- a) The Sun;
- b) the Mirror;
- c) all of the above.
- 3. A lot of people also listen to the news on the...
- a) video;
- b) radio;
- c) cam recorder.
- 4. The BBC is the...
- a) British Broadcasting Corporation;
- b) British Border Consultants;
- c) British Barber Consular.

- 5. British people have to buy ... every year
- a) newspaper;
- b) magazine;
- c) television license.
- 3. Put the words in the correct order:
- 1. The BBC / television and programs / uses the money / radio / from this to make
- 2. there's ITV that's Independent Television, / There are three / Channel 4 and Channel 5/ other terrestrial TV channels,
- 3. British people / every day / Two out of three / fifteen/ over the age of / read a newspaper
- 4. more human interest stories, / very much serious news / you'll find more gossip, / In tabloid papers / more pictures and not
- 5. daily and Sunday papers / Altogether there are / in Britain / about a hundred and thirty
- 6. in Britain / a washing machine/ more people have / a television than / It's interesting that
 - 4. True or Falls:
 - 1. There are also 6500 different magazines in Britain.
 - 2. Nowadays some people read their newspaper online.
- 3. The number of people in Britain who use the internet is decreasing all the time.
 - 4. A lot of people also listen to the news on the radio.
 - 5. BBC is commercial. There is advertising during their programs.
 - 6. On average British people watch almost 48 hours of television a week.
 - 7. 84 per cent of British homes have a video recorder.
 - 8. What kind of videos do you watch: 'I watch drama and horror videos.'
 - 9. These newspapers are larger. They called broadsheets or quality papers.

- 10. In these papers you'll find more news, more serious articles and more pictures.
- 5. What can you tell us about the media in Ukraine? Do the people buy and read newspapers often? How about the radio news or internet?

British Schools

1. Match English and Ukrainian equivalents:

British schools
primary school
General Certificate of Secondary
Education
advance level examination
other kinds of education and training
wide choice of subjects
food technology class
foreign languages
English literature and religion
hot chips and beans

іноземні мови гаряча смажена картопля і боби технології клас виробництва продуктів харчування англійська література і релігія початкова школа іспити просунутого рівня широкий вибір предметів види освіти і професійної інші підготовки Британські школи загальне свідоцтво середню про освіту

- 2. Choose the right variant:
- 1. Most children start primary school at the age of...
- a) 5;
- b) 6;
- c) 7.
- 2. GCSE examinations stand for:
- a) General Certificate of Secondary Education;
- b) General Certificate of Security Entrance;
- c) General Cost of Stock Exchange.
- 3. About 20 % of 18 year olds go to...
- a) school;
- b) university;
- c) college.

- 4. Students go to school from...
- a) September to November;
- b) Autumn to Spring;
- c) Monday to Friday.
- 5. The most secondary schools the students wear:
- a) uniforms;
- b) suits;
- c) butterflies.
- 3. Put the words in the correct order:
- 1. 22 students in a secondary school / there are about / class / and about 27 in a primary school / On average / class
- 2. learn a / schoolchildren only / of eleven / from the age / foreign language / Many British
- 3. and religion / other subjects / They also study / like / information / technology, history, geography, English literature
- 4. a break of an hour / have lessons / lunch / in the morning and then / Students / for
- 5. and badminton / like netball, rugby / is / very popular but / Football / so other games
 - 4. True or Falls:
 - 1. Ninety two per cent of British schools are independent schools.
- 2. The parents of the students from independent schools pay for their education.
 - 3. British children go to school on Saturdays.
 - 4. At eleven children go to secondary school.
 - 5. British students have a narrow choice of subjects.
- 6. Here is the food technology class. The students learn about design and architecture.
 - 7. Most students study German as a foreign language.

5. Please, tell to your colleague about national and private schools. What is the difference between them?

Sports in Britain

1. Match English and Ukrainian equivalents:

cricket
sporting venues
to win the tournament
swimming is popular
very popular walk
to walk from the stop to the finish
horse racing
to keep fit
every night of the week
large sport centers

щоночі протягом тижня великі спортивні центри йти від зупинки до фінішу крикет скачки підтримувати себе в формі дуже популярний маршрут ходьби плавання є популярним

виграти турнір

спортивні центри

- 2. Choose the right variant;
- 1. This is Wembley that seen some great... matches
- a) tennis;
- b) rugby;
- c) football.
- 2. All ... players want to win a tournament on Wimbledon
- a) cricket;
- b) tennis;
- c) badminton.
- 3. St. Andrews in Scotland is the home of...
- a) golf;
- b) ice hockey;
- c) basketball.
- 4. The most popular sport in Britain is...
- a) running;
- b) walking;
- c) swimming.
- 5. The British love watching sport too...
- a) television;
- b) live;
- c) all of the above.

- *3. Put the words in the correct order:*
- 1. Manchester United play / on a Saturday or / Over fifty five thousand / in Manchester/ Sunday afternoon/ / people / go to see
 - 2. everybody / is/ Sport/ young and old / for
- 3. this athletics club / and facilities like / Most towns and cities / in Britain / have a variety of sports clubs
- 4. some famous sporting venues / we / look at sport and / In this program / we begin with
 - 5. a very British game / cricket / of the game of / Lord's is the headquarters
- 6. sports and activities / taking up different / Britain more and / All over / more people are
 - 7. British Cycling Federation / Over 1200 clubs / belong to / the
- 8. Some / running / for competitions, / are training / huggling and some are / some are
 - 4. True or Falls:
 - 1. Henley on the river Thames is the center of the world of roaring.
 - 2. There are over 20000 public swimming pools in Britain.
 - 3. About 60% of the British People go walking.
 - 4. There are 225000 kilometres of national parks in Scotland and Ireland.
 - 5. Horse racing, motor racing and rugby are also very popular.
 - 6. Sport is only for experts.
- 7. These people are doing aerobics. They do it to keep fit and because they enjoy it.
- 5. What are the famous sports in your country? Do you like sport? Which one is your favourite?

Work in Britain

1. Match English and Ukrainian equivalents:

building industry
manufacturing
shipyards
the world's leading industrial nation
Jaguar car factory
two hundred cars a day
to work with computers
retailing is important
hi- tech industries
computers and software

високотехнологічні галузі двісті автомобілів на добу провідна світова промислова держава верфі комп'ютери і програмне забезпечення будівельна промисловість завод 3 виробництва автомобілів Ягуар працювати з комп'ютерами роздрібна торгівля має важливе значення виробництво

- 2. Choose the right variant:
- 1. About 27 million people:
- a) work;
- b) play;
- c) sleep.
- 2. About 1.5 million people are:
- a) employed;
- b) unemployed;
- c) missing.
- 3. Most people work...
- a) part time;
- b) full time;
- c) do not work.
- 4. Over a million people work in the...
- a) building industry;
- b) shoe industry;
- c) healthcare.
- 5. In the past Britain was famous for:
- a) manufacturing;
- b) IT technologies;
- c) education.

- 3. Put the words in the correct order:
- 1. Scotland, Wales and the North of England / In the 19th century / to make Britain / factories and shipyards in / produced cotton, machines and ships / the world's leading industrial nation
- 2. famous Jaguar cars / in 1935 and / appeared / The first of / 1951 / the / production started here in
- 3. offices and spend / more and more / is still important / Although manufacturing / working with computers / a lot of the day / people now work in
- 4. behind New York and Tokyo / London is the / three in the world / in Europe and number / number one financial center
- 5. important / hi-tech are/ industries / very/ now live in / Of course we / the $21^{\rm st}$ century and
 - 4. True or Falls:
 - 1. Most British people get twenty working days holiday every year.
 - 2. These days we can send information all over the world of touch of a button.
 - 3. The American car company Dodge bought Jaguar in 1989.
 - 4. In Britain can start work at the age of 18.
- 5. On average men in Britain work 50 hours a week. Women work about 40 hours a week.
 - 6. Eight of the top ten retail companies in Europe are French.
- 5. What industries are important in your country? What industry are you planning to work for? Why?

Holidays

1. Match English and Ukrainian equivalents:

two- week break
to go abroad
Florida and Caribbean
British holidaymakers
British weather
seaside holiday
to have a good time
guesthouse
to travel in caravan
climbing

добре проводити час сходження двотижнева перерва відпустка біля моря подорожувати в каравані Флорида і Кариби гостьовий будинок британська погода поїхати за кордон британські відпочиваючі

- 1. Like millions of other British people I go on holiday in the...
- a) winter;
- b) spring;
- c) summer.
- 2. Lots of people take a ... break
- a) one-week;
- b) two-week;
- c) three-week.
- 3. ... is the number one choice for many people.
- a) France;
- b) Spain;
- c) Italy.
- 4. Why do so many British people go abroad for their holidays?
- a) because of the weather;
- b) because it's cheap;
- c) because it's exotic.
- 5. In the 19th century people travelled by ... from the big cities.
- a) bus;
- b) by plane;
- c) by train.

- 3. Put the words in the correct order:
- 1. do / Brighton is / there are / family holidays because / a for place / lots of things to
 - 2. rain / hopes for a / Everyone / and not too much / lot of sunshine
- 3. in Devon or Cornwall / British people / spend their holidays / in the / England / South West / Over two million / of
- 4. visiting interesting / You can / travel gently through / a little time / places / the countryside and / spend
 - 5. relaxing / everyday life and / to/ very/ It's/ different to / very
- 6. popular months not / at / the most / Although July and August / are / everyone takes / the same time / their holidays
 - 4. True or Falls:
 - 1. Going abroad for a holiday is now very popular.
 - 2. Florida and Caribbean are popular with some holidaymakers.
 - 3. All British people go abroad for their holidays.
- 4. People travel from the big cities to the seaside towns such as: Liverpool, Oxford, Cambridge.
 - 5. Brighton is a place for business trips.
 - 6. Some people camp and tents or stay in caravan.
 - 7. London is very popular place for British holidaymakers.
 - 5. Where do you usually go on holidays? How do you spend them? Do you go abroad? What type of holiday do you like the most?

Environment

1. Match English and Ukrainian equivalents:

center of England to protect the environment British countryside money and employment laws to control pollution buses and trains increasing traffic

increasing traffic traffic free areas wildlife

wiidille

lovely places to see

жива природа автобуси і поїзди закони для боротьби з забрудненням прекрасні місця, щоб побачити збільшення трафіку (руху) британська сільська місцевість вільні від руху зони гроші і зайнятість

захищати навколишнє середовище

2. Choose the right variant:

1. The Peak District National Park covers an area of about 1500 square kilometers in the center of ...

центр Англії

- a) Scotland;
- b) England;
- c) Wales.
- 2. The ... created National Parks in 1949 to protect the environment.
- a) government;
- b) police;
- c) farmers.
- 3. A third of the population of Britain can get to the Peak District in less than...
 - a) hour;
 - b) half an hour;
 - c) two hours.
 - 4. Factories create ... but they also bring problems.
 - a) money;
 - b) employment;
 - c) all of the above.
 - 5. ... has been a problem in Britain since the 19th century.
 - a) pollution;
 - b) traffic;
 - c) money.

- *3. Put the words in the correct order:*
- 1. lasted for several / In 1952 / days / smog / died when a / four thousand people
- 2. Britain / are now 27 / in / roads / million cars, vans and lorries / There / on the
- 3. buses and trains / ten journeys / On average the British / for only one out of / people use
 - 4. traffic / have taken action / cities / increasing / Many/ to deal with
- 5. the people can / essential to protect / country it's / In such a crowded / the countryside so / enjoy it
 - 4. True or Falls:
 - 1. Britain is a large country with a small population.
 - 2. 75 per cent of British population live in villages.
 - 3. Looking after the environment has become an important part of British life.
 - 4. The Peak District lies between Oxford and London.
- 5. On the river Mersey near Liverpool we see what industry can do to the environment.
- 6. At that time (19th century) London became famous for it's smog a mixture of smoke and fog.
 - 7. Since 1952 the government has introduced laws to control pollution.
 - 8. A quarter of families have only one car.
- 5. What can you say about the air pollution in your country? Does your government do anything to protect the environment and to reduce the greenhouse gas emission? What can we do to protect our fragile ecosystems upon which we are so dependent?

Literature

- 1. Агабекян И. П. Английский язык для экономистов / И. П. Агабекян, П. И. Коваленко. [4-е изд, перер. и доп.]. Ростов-на-Дону: Феникс, 2004. 416 с.
- 2. Kay Sue. Inside Out. Intermediate / Sue Kay & Vaughan Jones. Basingstoke Hants : Macmillan, 2004. 175 p.
- 3. Prodromou Luke. Grammar and Vocabulary for the First Certificate / Luke Prodromou. Longman, 2006. 320 p.
- 4. McCarthy Michael. English Vocabulary in Use. Upper-Intermediate & Advanced / Michael McCarthy, Felicity O'Dell. Cambridge : Cambridge University Press, 2001. 303 p.
- 5. Gore Sylee. English for Marketing and Advertising / Sylee Gore. Oxford: Oxford University Press, 2007. 80 p.
- 6. Swan Michael, Walter Catherine. How English Works: A Grammar Practice Book / Michael Swan, Catherine Walter. Oxford: Oxford University Press, 2000. 350 p.

Навчальне видання

АНГЛІЙСЬКА МОВА

Методичні рекомендації

Укладач: Тішечкіна Катерина Вікторівна

Формат 60х84 1/16. Ум. друк. арк. 2,8

Тираж 50 пр. Зам. №__

Надруковано у видавничому відділі

Миколаївського національного аграрного університету

54020, м. Миколаїв, вул. Георгія Гонгадзе, 9

Свідоцтво суб'єкта видавничої справи ДК № 4490 від 20.02.2013 р.